The Medical Letter®

on Drugs and Therapeutics

Volume 60 January 29, 2018

1539

IN THIS ISSUE

In Brief: Olmesartan and Sprue-Like Enteropathyp 24

Important Copyright Message

FORWARDING OR COPYING IS A VIOLATION OF U.S. AND INTERNATIONAL COPYRIGHT LAWS

The Medical Letter, Inc. publications are protected by U.S. and international copyright laws. Forwarding, copying or any distribution of this material is prohibited.

Sharing a password with a non-subscriber or otherwise making the contents of this site available to third parties is strictly prohibited.

By accessing and reading the attached content I agree to comply with U.S. and international copyright laws and these terms and conditions of The Medical Letter, Inc.

For further information click: Subscriptions, Site Licenses, Reprints or call customer service at: 800-211-2769

The Medical Letter®

on Drugs and Therapeutics

Volume 60 **January 29, 2018**

IN BRIEF

Olmesartan and Sprue-Like Enteropathy

A reader asked whether healthcare providers should avoid prescribing the angiotensin receptor blocker (ARB) olmesartan medoxomil (Benicar, and others) because it can cause severe GI adverse effects.

In 2013, the FDA warned that olmesartan can cause sprue-like enteropathy, a condition characterized by intestinal villous atrophy, severe chronic diarrhea, and significant unintended weight loss. The warning was based on 23 cases of serious sprue-like enteropathy associated with use of olmesartan, some occurring years after starting the drug. All patients improved after stopping olmesartan; 10 had a positive rechallenge.1 A case series describing 22 patients reported similar observations.²

Duodenal biopsies in patients with olmesartanassociated enteropathy have shown elevated CD8+ T cell counts and overexpression of interleukin-15 by epithelial cells, biomarkers similar to those seen after gluten exposure in patients with celiac disease. Mucosal recovery and lower levels of inflammatory biomarkers were observed in biopsies obtained after stopping olmesartan.3

In an observational cohort study including about 4.5 million patients in France who started ARB or angiotensin converting enzyme (ACE) inhibitor therapy over a 6-year period, exposure to olmesartan for >2 years was associated with one additional hospitalization for intestinal malabsorption per 12,550 patients, compared with exposure to another ARB or ACE inhibitor; this difference was statistically significant.4

Isolated cases of enteropathy have been reported with use of other ARBs.5-8

The absolute risk of sprue-like enteropathy with olmesartan is very low, and the effect is reversible. Patients without GI risk factors whose hypertension is well controlled on olmesartan could probably continue taking it. For patients starting antihypertensive therapy and those with GI risk factors, any of the several other ACE inhibitors or ARBs available generically might be a better choice. Patients taking any ARB should notify their healthcare provider if they develop severe diarrhea.

- 1. FDA Drug Safety Communication: FDA approves label changes to include intestinal problems (sprue-like enteropathy) linked to blood pressure medicine olmesartan medoxomil. Available at: www.fda.gov/Drugs/DrugSafety/ucm359477.htm. Accessed January 18, 2018.
- 2. A Rubio-Tapia et al. Severe spruelike enteropathy associated with olmesartan. Mayo Clin Proc 2012; 87:732.
- 3. EV Marietta et al. Immunopathogenesis of olmesartan-associated enteropathy. Aliment Pharmacol Ther 2015; 42:1303.
- 4. M Basson et al. Severe intestinal malabsorption associated with olmesartan: a French nationwide observational cohort study. Gut 2016; 65:1664.
- 5. A Negro et al. A case of moderate sprue-like enteropathy associated with telmisartan. J Clin Med Res 2017; 9:1022.
- 6. HS Mandavdhare et al. Telmisartan-induced sprue-like enteropathy: a case report and a review of patients using nonolmesartan angiotensin receptor blockers. Intest Res 2017;
- 7. ML Herman et al. A case of severe sprue-like enteropathy associated with valsartan. ACG Case Rep J 2015; 2:92.
- 8. EY Choi and BJ McKenna. Olmesartan-associated enteropathy: a review of clinical and histologic findings. Arch Pathol Lab Med 2015: 139:1242.
- 9. Drugs for hypertension. Med Lett Drugs Ther 2017; 59:41.

Follow us on Twitter 😈 Like us on Facebook 🌃





PRESIDENT: Mark Abramowicz, M.D.; VICE PRESIDENT AND EXECUTIVE EDITOR: Gianna Zuccotti, M.D., M.P.H., F.A.C.P., Harvard Medical School; EDITOR IN CHIEF: Jean-Marie Pflomm, Pharm.D.; ASSOCIATE EDITORS: Susan M. Daron, Pharm.D., Amy Faucard, MLS, Corinne Z. Morrison, Pharm.D., Michael P. Viscusi, Pharm.D.; CONSULTING EDITORS: Brinda M. Shah, Pharm.D., F. Peter Swanson, M.D.

CONTRIBUTING EDITORS: Carl W. Bazil, M.D., Ph.D., Columbia University College of Physicians and Surgeons; Ericka L. Crouse, Pharm.D., B.C.P.P., C.G.P., F.A.S.H.P., F.A.S.C.P., Virginia Commonwealth University Health; Vanessa K. Dalton, M.D., M.P.H., University of Michigan Medical School; Eric J. Epstein, M.D., Albert Einstein College of Medicine; David N. Juurlink, BPhm, M.D., Ph.D., Sunnybrook Health Sciences Centre; Richard B. Kim, M.D., University of Western Ontario; Franco M. Muggia, M.D., New York University Medical Center; Sandip K. Mukherjee, M.D., F.A.C.C., Yale School of Medicine; Dan M. Roden, M.D., Vanderbilt University School of Medicine; Esperance A.K. Schaefer, M.D., M.P.H., Harvard Medical School; F. Estelle R. Simons, M.D., FR.C.P.C., F.R.S.C., University of Manitoba; Neal H. Steigbigel, M.D., New York University School of Medicine; Arthur M. F. Yee, M.D., Ph.D., F.A.C.R., Weill Medical College of Cornell University

MANAGING EDITOR: Susie Wong; ASSISTANT MANAGING EDITOR: Liz Donohue

FULFILLMENT AND SYSTEMS MANAGER: Cristine Romatowski; SITE LICENSE SALES: Elaine Reaney-Tomaselli; EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS: Joanne F. Valentino; VICE PRESIDENT AND PUBLISHER: Yosef Wissner-Levy

Founded in 1959 by

Arthur Kallet and Harold Aaron, M.D.

Copyright and Disclaimer. The Medical Letter, Inc. is an independent nonprofit organization that provides healthcare professionals with unbiased drug prescribing recommendations. The editorial process used for its publications relies on a review of published and unpublished literature, with an emphasis on controlled clinical trials, and on the opinions of its consultants. The Medical Letter, Inc. does not sell advertising or receive any commercial support. No part of the material may be reproduced or transmitted by any process in whole or in part without prior permission in writing. The editors do not warrant that all the material in this publication is accurate and complete in every respect. The editors shall not be held responsible for any damage resulting from any error, inaccuracy, or omission.

Address:

The Medical Letter, Inc. 145 Huguenot St. Ste. 312 New Rochelle, NY 10801-7537 www.medicalletter.org **Customer Service:** Call: 800-211-2769 or 914-235-0500 Fax: 914-632-1733 E-mail: custserv@medicalletter.org

Subscription Services Permissions:

To reproduce any portion of this issue, please e-mail your request to: permissions@medicalletter.org

Subscriptions (US): 1 year - \$159; 2 years - \$298; 3 years - \$398. \$65 per year for students, interns, residents, and fellows in the US and Canada. Reprints - \$25/article; \$35/issue

Site License Inquiries: E-mail: SubQuote@medicalletter.org Call: 800-211-2769 Special rates available for bulk subscriptions.

Get Connected:



Copyright 2018, ISSN 1523-2859